Ho-325 circa 1835
Caleb Merryman's Two Frame Buildings

Ellicott City

Private

These two frame buildings facing north on the southeast corner
of Main Street and Merryman Street were constructed circa 1835 by Caleb.
Merryman on a tract of land called "Mount Misery'', conveyed to Elias,
John and George Ellicott by Thomas, Elias and William Brown.

Two two bay wide, one room deep, two and a half story frame structures
are covered by a single gabled roof (running east-west) and share a

one story high central alley and second and attic floor wall. Wide
brick chimneys are inset into their exterior east and west walls. An
open, hipped roof, one story high porch runs along the north elevation
supported by five doric columns. Rectangular entrance doors, surmounted
by four light transoms (the east now holds an air conditiomer), rest

on either side of the central rectangular alley entrance door.

An early two story high, shed roofed addition runs along the entire
south elevation with further appendages on the east and west sides of
its south wall.

The interior features original brick mantle pieces, wide, random width
floors, original hardware and original woodwork. The second floor living
room on the west side has been completely renovated by Mr. Allen Abend,
the present owner, who has exposed all the supporting studs and half the
ceiling joists, creating a cathedral ceiling effect.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The -Caleb Merryman House faces north on the southeast corner of Main
Street and Merryman Street. Originally it was constructed of frame
which has been covered with aluminum siding. Two two bay wide, one room
deep, two and a half story frame structures are covered by a single gabled
roof which runs east-west. A one story high alley runs between the two
frame houses which share a common second floor and attic wall. Wide
brick chimneys are inset into their exterior east and west walls.
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Very soon after these buildings were constructed and prior to
1878 (see attachment 3) a two story high, shed roofed addition was
built along their south wall. (See figure 1.) On the west it holds
a first and second floor double-hung rectangular window with six-over-
six lights, decorated with deep forest green shutters. Along the south
wall of this addition may have been four similar windows. Only three
are now evident as a two story high, one bay wide, one bay deep shed roofed !
addition springs from the first east bay of the south wall. See Figures )
1, 2 and 3. 1Its south wall holds a rectangular, double-hung window with
one-over-one lights. Above a similar second floor window holds six-over-
six lights. A square brick chimney is located in its northeast corner.
A one story high, shed roofed addition springs from the south wall of
addition I (see figure 1, 2 and 3).

U S S

A hipped roof, one story high open porch runs along the entire north
elevation which faces Main Street. It is supported by five round wooden
columns and two half columns attached to the east and west sides of the
north wall. Two single granite steps, lying side by sideylead to the
wooden porch and the two rectangular entrances which are separated by a
rectangular door which leads into their common alley. Four light transoms
surmount the east and west entrances. That on the east now holds an air
conditioning unit. :

The interior of the west side building is now owned by Mr. Allen
Abend, an architect who is in the process of sensitively restoring this
side of the duplex. The second floor living room has been completed, un-
covering the original brick fireplace and randam width floors as well as
exposing the studs and ceiling joists of the room. Half the attic floor ¢
boards have been removed and the roof trusses revealed to create a cathedral
ceiling effect of spaciousness. On the south side of the room, attic
random width floor boards have been used for the ceiling (running east-
west) above which is a pleasant attic loft.

Future plans include creating one large south room on the second floor
addition which now holds partitioms.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Merryman two frame buildings are of both architectural and historical

significance as well as an example of Ellicott's Community Planning.

An early Ellicott Deed dated May 2, 1836 refers to these two frame
buildings as 'mew'" in the following passage:

at the end of a line drawn up the South line of the Turnpike
road North forty nine degrees and fifteen minutes West twenty
feet from the north west corner of Caleb Merryman's mew frame
buildings on Lot number seventy two . . . . ", (Ann Arundel
Land Records WSG21-215)

This would indicate that the buildings were in existence in May, 1836
and were probably built some time between 1830-1835. An Ann Arundel deed
dated 14 of January, 1837 between Jonathan H. Ellicott of Jonathan of
Baltimore City and County and Caleb Merryman of the same county, in which
Mr. Ellicott conveyed the land and Mr. Merryman's new frame. buildings
built upon the said lot to Mr. Merryman, located these lots on a tract of
land called '"Mount MiseryY. (WSG21-623)

"Mount Misery' was ''part of 107 acres more or less conveyed by deed
dated July 11, 1818 to Elias Ellicott, John Ellicott and George Ellicott
by Thomas Brown and William Brown . . ." (WSG 21 - 178)

The plat of the Ellicottsdealing with a portion of this tract by -
William Dawson, Jr., Surveyor, dated July 25, 1836, (see attachment 2;
exemplifies how the Ellicotts sub-divided their land and cut out streets.
Notice that a puregrid is not followed. The contour of the land and
granite cliffs dictate the street pattern which is a necessary and in-
teresting element in the community planning of Ellicott Mills by the
Ellicotts. 1In addition the Ellicotts held on to the land, leasing it for
a term of ninety-nine years and requiring a yearly rent on same. 1In the
case of Caleb Merryman he was required to pay a yearly rent of "twenty -
four dollars lawful money of the United States free and clear of all
deductions for taxes and assessments of every kind and nature whatever
levied". (WSG 21-623)
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Architecturally, the building is noteworthy as an example of an
early frame duplex with central alley. Most houses of this period
were of ashlar granite block or brick construction. The uncovering
of the original studs and ceiling joists as well as the beam
which continues through to the east side of the duplex by Mr. Abend
is of particular significance architecturally. In addition the second
floor brick mantle piece and chimney have been uncovered and put into
safe working order. Machine cut and headed nails have been uncovered
which were manufactured between the years 1815 and 1830's. Thence the
construction of the building might be between those same years. Wide,
- randam width attic floors also reveal an early date of construction.

¥—The shed roof, two story high addition along the south elevation dates

prior to 1878 for the Hopkin's Atlas shows the configuration of the
building to include the addition. /

, The building in 1835 was a one room up and one room down with attic
and probably out door kitchen and toilet facilities. By 1878 the building
had been enlarged to an additional first and second floor room. Very early
additional appendages have been added on the south to provide .

kitchens. -

The exposure of the roof structure indicates the lack of a ridge
beam. The rafters are fastened with a .tongue and mortice joint and

pegged. ) S : : - S .

-

fNotewdrthy historically and architecturally; this bBuilding should
be place on the Natiomal Register of Historic Places. . ‘
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Figure I. South Elevation of Caleb Merryman's Two Frame Buildings



NOT TO SCALE

Figure 2. West Elevation of Caleb Merryman's Two Frame Buildings
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Figure 3. Site Plan of Ho-325 Caleb Merrymanhs Two Frame Buildings
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